
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Sustainability Cabinet Committee 

Date: 19 January 2009 

Time: 3.00pm 

Venue Committee Room 1, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors:  
Mears (Chairman), Caulfield and Fallon-Khan 

 Lead Councillor for Sustainability:  
Councillor Mrs Denise Cobb 

Contact: Tanya Massey 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291227 
tanya.massey@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 

Public 
Speaker 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Member 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Mears 

Director Lawyer 

Opposition 
Spokes 
person 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 
 Councillor 

Caulfield 

Councillor 
Fallon-Khan 

Councillor 
Cobb 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Members in Attendance 

Press 

Officers in Attendance 

Public Seating 



SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

15. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(b) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

16. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

17. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 4 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 October 2008 (copy attached).  
 

18. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION  

 (a) Items reserved by the Cabinet Committee 

(b) Items reserved by the Opposition Spokesperson 

(c) Items reserved by Members, with the agreement of the Cabinet 
Member. 

NOTE: Public Questions, Written Questions form Councillors, Petitions, 
Deputations, Letters from Councillors and Notices of Motion will be 
reserved automatically. 

 

 

19. PETITIONS  

 No petitions received by date of publication.  
 



SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

20. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on 12 January 
2008) 
 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

 

21. DEPUTATIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 12 January 
2008) 
 
No deputations received by date of publication. 

 

 

22. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No letters have been received.  
 

23. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received.  
 

24. NOTICES OF MOTION  

 No Notices of Motion have been received.  
 

25. PROCUREMENT CODE OF PRACTICE - SUSTAINABILITY 5 - 36 

 Report of the Interim Director of Finance & Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Denise Potts-Morton Tel: 29-4059  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

26. URBAN BIOSPHERE CITY STATUS 37 - 46 

 Report of the Director of Strategy & Governance (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Mita Patel 
Matthew Thomas 

Tel: 29-3332 
Tel: 29-2371 

 

 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

27. SUSTAINABLE CITIES INDEX 47 - 56 

 Report of the Director of Strategy & Governance (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Thurstan Crockett Tel: 29-2503  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

28. DRAFT ONE PLANET LIVING PLAN FOR BRIGHTON & HOVE  

 Verbal update from the Head of Sustainability & Environmental Policy.  
 

 



SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Tanya Massey, 
(01273 291227, email tanya.massey@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Friday, 9 January 2009 

 
 

 





SUSTAINABILITY 
CABINET COMMITTEE  

Agenda Item 17 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

2.00PM 8 OCTOBER 2008 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Mears (Chairman), Caulfield 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Mrs Cobb (Lead Member for Sustainability),   
 
Other Members present: Councillors Oxley 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
1A Declarations of Interests 
 
1a.1 There were none. 
 
1B Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
1b.1 In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was 

considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
the consideration of any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of 
the business to be transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to 
whether, if members of the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to 
them of confidential or exempt information as defined in section 100I (1) of the said Act. 

 
1b.2 RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 
 
2. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
2.1 The Cabinet Committee considered a report of the Director of Strategy & Governance 

concerning the Terms of Reference for the Sustainability Cabinet Committee (for copy 
see minute book). 

 
2.2 RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference be noted. 
 
3. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 

1



 

 

SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 8 OCTOBER 2008 

3.1 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the new Sustainability Cabinet 
Committee and explained that it came within the remit of the Leader of the Council 
because of the importance the council placed upon sustainability issues within the city. 

3.2 The Chairman stated that she hoped more councillors and members of the public would 
take an interest in future meetings of the Cabinet Committee. 

 
4. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
4.1 RESOLVED – That all items be reserved for discussion. 
 
5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
5.1 There were none. 
 
6. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
6.1 There were none. 
 
7. DEPUTATIONS 
 
7.1 There were none. 
 
8. PETITIONS 
 
8.1 There were none. 
 
9. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
9.1 There were none. 
 
10. NOTICES OF MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 
 
10.1 There were none. 
 
11. MATTERS REFERRED FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
11.1 There were none. 
 
12. REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 
12.1 There were none. 
 
13. CITY SUSTAINABILITY PARTNERSHIP 
 
13.1 The Cabinet Committee considered a report of the Director of Strategy & Governance 

concerning the creation of the new City Sustainability Partnership (CSP) under the Local 
Strategic Partnership (LSP) (for copy see minute book). 

 
13.2 The Lead Councillor for Sustainability explained that the LSP had already agreed to the 

creation of the CSP; invitations to join had gone out and the LSP was awaiting 

2



 

 

SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 8 OCTOBER 2008 

responses. She added that the council had already chosen herself, Councillor Mitchell, 
Councillor Steedman and Councillor Elgood as its representatives and the Community 
and Voluntary Sector Forum had chosen Chris Todd, Jacqui Cuff and Mike Creedy. 

13.3 The Head of Sustainability & Environmental Policy commented that good quality 
responses to the consultation had been received and the overall reaction to setting up 
the CSP had been positive. 

 
13.4 RESOLVED - That having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet Committee accepted the following recommendations: 
 

(1) That the results of the consultation undertaken on the new City Sustainability 
Partnership be noted. 

 
(2) That the creation of the partnership under the LSP be supported, and the associated 
costs be noted. 

 
14. CARBON MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME SELF-ASSESSMENT 
 
14.1 The Cabinet Committee considered a report of the Director of Strategy & Governance 

concerning the findings of a review of the Carbon management Programme (CMP) self-
assessment (for copy see minute book). 

 
14.2 The Lead Councillor for Sustainability explained that the Cabinet Committee were being 

asked to reaffirm the council’s commitment to carbon management and energy 
efficiency savings and to instigate a review of the Carbon Management Programme 
Strategy and Implementation Plan. 

 
14.3 The Cabinet Member for Housing welcomed the report and in particular its relevance to 

her portfolio given that one of the aims of the Local Delivery Vehicle for housing 
management was to reduce carbon emissions from the council’s housing stock. 

 
14.4 RESOLVED - That having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet Committee accepted the following recommendations: 
 

(1) That the council’s commitment to carbon management and energy efficiency savings 
in response to the challenges of climate change and rising energy prices be re-
affirmed. 

 
(2) That a review of the CMP Strategy & Implementation Plan, based on the self-
assessment findings, be instigated. 

 
14.5 The Chairman invited members of the public to address the meeting on any of the 

issues raised. 
 
14.6 John Patmore, Environmental Consultant stated that he was concerned that more 

councillors and members of the public had not taken an interest in the meeting and that 
more publicity for future meetings of the Cabinet Committee and the CSP was 
necessary. 

 

3



 

 

SUSTAINABILITY CABINET COMMITTEE 8 OCTOBER 2008 

14.7 The Head of Policy explained that meetings of the LSP and CSP were publicised and 
that interested parties could contact the council’s Sustainability Team for further 
information. 

 
14.8 The Chairman reiterated the importance of the Cabinet Committee and the need for 

debate, and explained that all councillors were made aware of its meetings. 
 

The meeting concluded at 2.12pm 
 

Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

4



SUSTAINABILITY 
CABINET COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 25 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

Subject: Procurement Code of Practice - Sustainability 

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2009 

Report of: Interim Director of Finance & Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Denise Potts Morton  Tel: 29-4059      

 E-mail: denise.potts-morton@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce the revised Procurement Code of 

Practice for Sustainability, which sets out the council’s approach to sustainable 
procurement. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

  
2.1 (1) That the Cabinet Committee notes the principles within the revised Code of 

Practice outlined in Appendix 1. 
 
2.2 (2) That the Cabinet Committee approves and endorses the revised Code of 

Practice. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
  
3.1 The Code of Practice was originally created in 2002. Since this time, there have 

been a number of Central Government initiatives that have been implemented as 
a result of an increasing awareness of the importance of sustainability.  

 
3.2 The new Sustainability Code of Practice focuses on the following key areas: 
 

§ Central Government – are advising authorities to focus on key areas of 
spend which will have the greatest impact on carbon, water & waste.  

 
§ Responsible Procurement – this section promotes the purchase of supplies, 

services and works in an environmentally and socially responsible way that 
delivers value for money and brings benefits to the citizens of Brighton & 
Hove. 

 

5



§ Waste Reduction & Recycling – are key areas for consideration in any 
procurement activity.  The Code of Practice highlights how the private sector 
has, through its drive to reduce costs, achieved sustainable benefits.  

 
§ Supply Chains & Supply Markets – there is a need to encourage Contract 

Officers to look and understand ‘the bigger picture' when participating in a 
procurement activity.  

 
§ Social and Economic Benefits – the Code of Practice outlines the potential 

benefits of spending money locally, know as the local multiplier effect.   
 
§ Checklists – the Code of Practice also includes a number of easy to follow 

checklists to support Officers when conducting procurement exercises.  
 

4. CONSULTATION 
  

4.1 Consultation has taken place between Corporate Procurement & the 
Sustainability Team. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out the financial plans over a 

3 year period. One of the financial planning principles for meeting savings within 
the financial strategy is to deliver Value for Money through sustainable 
procurement savings. The Sustainability Code of Practice will support the 
delivery of these savings across council services. 
 

 Finance Officer consulted: James Hengeveld  Date: 14/10/08 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 The Council must take the Human Rights Act into account in respect of its 

actions but it is not considered that any individual’s Human Rights Act rights 
would be adversely affected by the recommendations in this report. 
 

 Lawyer consulted:   Sonia Likhari    Date: 04/11/08 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
  
5.3 The Sustainability Code of Practice sets out the council’s commitment to 

promote equality via corporate purchasing and procurement processes. This 
is an important element of the council’s progress as measured by the 
Equalities Standard. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The Sustainability Code of Practice highlights how sustainability issues 

should be considered during all council procurement activity. It provides 
commitment towards the council’s overall commitment to sustainability and 
to carbon emissions reduction targets. These are outlined in the wider 

6



corporate commitments including the Sustainability Strategy, Carbon 
Management Programme and Climate Change Action Plan. 

  
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
5.5 The Sustainability Code of Practice promotes supporting the local economy by 

encouraging contractors to employ and train local people. By lowering 
unemployment and promoting opportunities within the City, this may have a 
positive impact on crime and disorder. 

 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
   
 The role of risk management is key when assessing all possible procurement 

activities within the council. There is increased financial, service and reputational 
risk if Contract Officers do not follow the procurement best practice.   

 
Corporate / Citywide Implications 
 

 The Code of Practice highlights the benefits that local sustainable procurement 
can bring to the local economy.    

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
7.1 Committee is asked to note and approve the Sustainable Code of Practice to 

ensure that best practice procurement is adopted across the council. 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Procurement Code of Practice - Sustainability 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 

7



8



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 
Procurement Code of Practice:  

Sustainability 
 

 
January 2009  

 
 
 
 

 

9



 
 

 

2 

 

 
Introduction ………………………………………………………………………….4 
 

 

Sustainable Procurement is Responsible Procurement ...................................6 
What is actually required?................................................................................6 
How sustainable is it?.......................................................................................6 
Waste Reduction and Disposal ........................................................................6 
Waste...............................................................................................................7 
Duty of care......................................................................................................7 
Waste disposal.................................................................................................7 
Asbestos ..........................................................................................................8 
Water Usage ....................................................................................................8 
Energy usage ...................................................................................................8 
Food.................................................................................................................8 
Animal Welfare Charter ....................................................................................9 

 
Market Conditions ............................................................................................9 
Supply chain and supply markets.....................................................................9 
Environmental Management Schemes ..........................................................10 
Environmental Claims & Eco-labels ...............................................................10 
Social and Economic Sustainability................................................................11 
Stakeholder involvement ................................................................................11 
 
Development of Local Businesses and SMEs................................................11 
Continuous Improvement ...............................................................................13 
 
 
Appendix 1    Eco-labels.................................................................................15 
Appendix 1a  Example of sustainability criteria evaluation.............................16 
Appendix  2   EU Public Procurement Legislation ..........................................18 
Appendix  3   Example Clauses .....................................................................19 
Appendix  4   Council Contacts ......................................................................21 
Appendix  4a Useful Websites and links ........................................................22 
Appendix 5     Sustainable Procurement Checklist.........................................23 
Glossary .........................................................................................................26 
Appendix 6     Local Gvt Sustainable Procurement Strategy – Framework… 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 
 

 

3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 
 

 

4 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The council is responsible for some aspects of life that cannot be assigned a 
monetary value, such as the aesthetic benefit of clean streets and the feeling 
of safety for all our citizens that results from low crime rates.  This can only be 
achieved through the councils commitment to long term, sustainable supply 
and through the dedication of Contract Officers to push ahead in the 
development and management of it contracts.  
 
As a local authority the council is required to take its lead from Central 
Government and other public bodies such as the Audit Commission. Under 
the Corporate Plan the council has taken the decision to aim to achieve level 
three of the Audit Commission ‘Use of Resources Assessment 2008/09’.  This 
document outlines the aims and objectives driven by government bodies. 
 
Probably the most significant driver for Contract Officers in the last few years 
has been the Sustainable Procurement Task Force chaired by Sir Neville 
Simms ‘Procuring the Future’. The Treasury and DEFRA (Department of 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs) commissioned the Task Force to devise 
a national action plan to deliver the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 
goal of making the UK a leader in the European Union on sustainable 
procurement by 2009. 
 
They define sustainable procurement as “a process whereby organisations 
meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities in a way that 
achieves value for money on a whole-life basis in terms of generating benefits 
not only to the organisation, but also to society and the economy, while 
minimising damage to the environment.”  
 
The Local Government Sustainable Procurement Strategy plan sets out 
the objectives local government need to follow in response to the Sustainable 
Procurement Task Force and the UK Government’s Sustainable Procurement 
Action.  A flexible framework (see Appendix 6) has been introduced to drive 
through the required sustainability improvements needed.  
 
The Corporate Procurement Strategy sets out the council's approach to 
sustainable procurement and the importance of supporting the local economy. 

 
When specifying contracts the council will adopt a whole life cost approach by 
assessing the environmental impact of products/specification from their 
production/ construction to their disposal. When specifying contracts the 
council will also consider employment implications including equality issues.  
 
Contracts need to make a contribution towards the council meeting its overall 
objectives as set out in the Sustainability Strategy.  To achieve this 
contribution, stakeholders and Contract Officers may select elements that will 
form part of the evaluation criteria. For example the question could be asked: 
what energy saving initiatives could your company offer?    

12



 
 

 

5 

 

In order for the council to achieve Value for Money it is essential to consult 
stakeholders (particularly end users) about the appropriate balance between 
sustainability and cost.  
 
The council’s spending power, especially in collaboration with other councils, 
can have significant influence on the key markets in which it operates. This 
can be used to stimulate the market and encourage innovation.   
 
This Code of Practice provides a clear set of guidelines to help develop 
understanding of sustainability issues when producing user requirements and 
evaluation criteria for the purchase of works, supplies or services.  It has been 
developed to support the Sustainability Strategy and its action plans.  
 
The appendices at the back of this document provide further illustration of 
practical methods officers can deploy to support them in the inclusion of 
sustainability within their procurement exercises.   
 

13



 
 

 

6 

 

Sustainable Procurement is Responsible Procurement 
 
 
Responsible Procurement is the purchase of supplies, services and works in 
an environmentally and socially responsible way.  This delivers value for 
money and brings benefits to the citizens of Brighton & Hove by ensuring that:  

 

• focus is on outcomes and not output 
• needs of the users are met but not exceeded  
• the contract scope is wide enough to ensure future needs can be met  
• Value for Money is achieved throughout the life of the contract and beyond 
• maximum social and economic benefits are achieved globally 
• the environment is protected for future generations 
 
Before the decision is made on any procurement process, the following 
questions need to be asked: 
 
What is actually required?  
This is not necessarily what has been provided in the past. Before starting any 
procurement process explore new avenues, carry out market research and 
take time to speak with other councils to find out how they have satisfied their 
requirements. 
 
How sustainable is it?  
Consideration needs to be given to the long-term sustainable impact of the 
supply chain and the whole life cost of the goods, services or works, before 
any final decision is made.  
Avoid unnecessary purchases and unnecessary waste.  Consider alternative 
options that may already be available within the council or are there 
opportunities to collaborate internally or with other local authorities?   
 
Waste Reduction and Disposal  
 
This is a key area of consideration for the council. Not only will the efficient 
use of resources aid the council in achieving its sustainability objectives it will 
also have a significant impact on its purchasing requirements. This can be 
achieved by practising the five procurement “R"s by considering the following: 
 
Reduce the amount of raw materials, energy, fuel, water and landfill waste 
that the council produces every day, not only within its own environment, but 
also through the council’s supply chain. As a contract draws to a close, or at 
the start of a new tendering process market research should be carried out to 
identify what new innovations/developments are coming into the market place. 
  
Re-use or Recycle - try to find uses for unwanted goods, equipment or 
materials that would otherwise go into landfill sites with the increasing 
associated costs. For example: the Highways Department have a contractor 
that can remove and recycle BHCC road and pavement waste.  This can then 
be re-used as hardcore within the city.   

14



 
 

 

7 

 

 
When making a purchasing decision, consider supplies which contain an 
element of recycled materials. There is no benefit to recycling if organisations 
will not purchase recycled materials back.  
 
Repairing goods was once the norm.  As the cost of goods decreased and 
the cost of repairs increased, repairs became unfashionable. This idea is now 
reversing due to the rising cost of raw materials and the increased awareness 
of sustainable issues. Contract officers need to consider their procurement 
options: is it more cost effective/sustainable to repair goods before replacing 
with new?  

 

Rethink before your next purchasing decision.  Consider all the options i.e. is 
it sustainable, does it provide long-term value for money for the council? Do 
your market research; don’t just accept what has been the norm in the past.   
 
Waste  
Contract Officers must take on board their responsibility to drive out and 
reduce waste from the start of the procurement process to the end of product 
life. Officers need to engage with contractors to promote the reduction of 
waste with their suppliers through the supply chain.  
Packaging is often a significant part of waste.  Contractors will charge the 
council directly or indirectly for all packaging, and the council will also have to 
pay disposal costs either through landfill charges or recycling costs. Careful 
consideration needs to be given as to how packaging can be reduced.  
 
For example, companies such as Marks & Spencer and ASDA have worked 
hard to reduce their waste consumption and increase profit margins by 
reducing their packaging on clothing and goods and looking at different ways 
of transporting goods around the country e.g. double decker vehicles which 
carry twice the amount of goods, and the use of trains & barges. The council 
may not need to worry about profit, but it does need to reduce costs to ensure 
the best use of public money. The council has made significant achievement 
with the new Corporate Commercial Waste contract.  The contractor 
responsible for this contract recycles 70% of the waste collected, only 30% of 
council commercial waste now goes into landfill.    
 
Duty of care 
There are legal responsibilities, which the buyer cannot delegate to the 
contractor. The Environmental Protection Act 1990 puts a duty on the original 
waste producer or any person who imports, carries, treats, disposes or 
manages controlled waste, to take all reasonable measures to ensure that the 
waste is dealt with properly and legally.  
 
Waste disposal 
EU Directives – WEEE.  Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directive 
This change will move responsibility for disposal to the originator. Systems 
should be set up to encourage separate collection of WEEE.  
For advice on this contact Cityclean on 4722. 

15



 
 

 

8 

 

 
Asbestos  
Property & Design manage and administer an asbestos register of council 
buildings containing or suspected of containing asbestos. All works 
Contractors should be aware and consult it before any works are carried out. 
If you suspect asbestos is present contact Property & Design. 
 
Water Usage 
Water is a vital resource and is fundamental to the environment. Brighton & 
Hove are exposed as the City has a high consumption rate, so action needs to 
be taken to prevent the risk of drought.  During the manufacturing process of 
supplies or procuring works or services, consideration needs to be given to 
the amount of water consumption and methods to reduce consumption; this 
should not only save on precious water supplies, but also reduce cost. For 
example: reuse of grey water in building or for parks, more efficient appliances 
for heating or laundry.   
 

Energy usage 
Sustainable energy use is essential to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and 
achieve substantial cost savings over the lifetime of the product/service being 
delivered. 
 
The Government has national targets for reduction of carbon dioxide (CO2) 
emissions, and more efficient use of energy.  The target is a reduction of 80% 
of CO2 emissions by 2050 based on 1990 levels.  The use of renewable 
energy is essential in supporting the achievement of this target.  
The city and council signed up to a 12% CO2 reduction target based on a 4% 
reduction year on year from 2008 - 2011.  Further cuts are likely to follow.  
 
The council has committed to reduce the CO2 emissions produced by its 
contractors.   
 
Areas to consider: 

• Energy efficient  products  
• Use of renewable energy 
• Reducing energy use  

 

Consideration of 'embodied' energy should also be made. This is the amount 
of energy used in the extraction of materials, manufacture, transport and 
assembly. Your contractor should be able to provide basic details of their 
products to enable the council to make a decision. For further advice contract 
the Energy & Water Manager ex: 1431.   
 
Food  
The first objective in the Council’s Sustainability Strategy is:  

"To improve everyone's access to the 'basic elements of life' such as good 
quality local food" 

 
"To improve everyone's access to the 'basic elements of life' such  

16



 
 

 

9 

 

The Council’s Food Strategy contains targets which create questions for 
procurement to consider. For example:  
 

• Are sustainable farming methods used in its production?  
• What are the transportation issues (Food Miles)? 
• Can seasonal or organic options be specified? 
• Consider the need to cater for ethnic, cultural & religious diets?  
• Can Fairtrade options be sought? 

 

In October 2004 Brighton & Hove became a Fairtrade City. The promotion of 
Fairtrade is an optional choice with the aim of supporting others less 
fortunate than ourselves.  A product with the Fairtrade mark has also been 
produced within a set of minimum environmental standards. 
 
Animal Welfare Charter 
Through the Animal Welfare Charter the Council has agreed to take into 
account, where appropriate, animal welfare issues in its day-to-day 
operations.  For a copy or further advice contact the Public Safety Division 
within Environmental Health & Licensing. (contact Tim Nichols ext. 2163). 
 
 

Market Conditions 
 
Supply chain and supply markets  
The impact of pollution, health and the environment need to be considered 
when tendering.  It is important to engage with the supplier and discuss ways 
of reducing negative impact on the environment. This discussion would focus 
around people, materials, transport and embodied energy.  The types of 
materials used for goods and the forms of transport used can have a 
significant effect on the environment. For example:  
 

• Transport should be fuel efficient, low or zero emission 
 

• Could deliveries be made in bulk to reduce the number of trips? 
  

• Products should be sourced from natural materials and renewable 
resources, extracted and harvested by environmentally sound methods 
 

• Where possible materials should be sourced locally (care to be 
exercised in specifying, as must be non-discriminatory) 
 

• Timber should be from a sustainable source, for example the Forest 
Stewardship Council (FSC) provide a forest certification system that 
promotes forestry that is environmentally appropriate, socially 
acceptable and economically viable through a system of forest 
certification and product labelling  

 

The following diagram shows an example of a basic external supply chain. If 
you consider it takes 11 months to produce a soft drinks can, you can identify 
from the example below how much transportation and embodied energy goes 
into a single supply chain. 
 

17



 
 

 

10 

 

External supply chain:  

 
 

 
If we understand the supply market there may be an opportunity to influence 
and develop that market. Market research should be carried out on a regular 
basis to identify current market position and new developments.  
 

When tendering for large value contracts or collaborating with other local 
authorities, serious  consideration needs to be given to the opportunity to drive 
through innovations bringing significant sustainable benefits as well as 
increased value for money.  

 

Contract Officers need to work with their contractors and suppliers to limit the 
impact on the environment.   
 
 
Environmental Management Schemes 
 

There are formal standards for environmental management systems in place, 
which assure purchasers that suppliers are operating to control their 
environmental impacts.  Certification for companies’ environmental 
management systems can be obtained under ISO 14001 or the Eco-
Management and Audit Scheme (EMAS). These are voluntary schemes and 
are promoted by the government. For small or medium enterprises (SMEs) 
not currently holding IS0 14001, BS855 offers a phased approach to obtaining 
ISO 14001 or EMAS 
 
Environmental Claims & Eco-labels 
 
Care should be taken with unsubstantiated environmental claims or 
environmental marks that have no formal recognition; for example some 
typical phrases are:  
 

• "Comes from managed forests" - virtually all forests used for papermaking 
are managed, but some are managed in ways that are strongly criticised 
by environmentalists 

18



 
 

 

11 

 

 

• "biodegradable" - this is a meaningless term unless explained e.g. a 
product may biodegrade in a week or may take a number of years even 
with the right conditions 

 
The International Standards Organisation (ISO) has developed standards to 
clarify environmental labels and declarations, details of these standards can 
be found on the ISO website. 
  
Eco-labels certify products that are deemed to be more environmentally sound 
than similar products in that same product group. The labels are awarded to 
products complying with specific ecological and performance criteria. 
Examples of Eco-labels can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

 

Social and Economic Sustainability 
 
Stakeholder involvement 
Stakeholder involvement is of particular importance when specifying a product 
or service. This will ensure local ownership of the initiative and improve social 
cohesion as it demonstrates that stakeholders are valued and involved in the 
decision making process. The key principles of stakeholder involvement are: 
 

• mapping of existing networks of stakeholder organisations 
  

• identification of different and possibly conflicting interests and gaps  
 
• determine and agree appropriate level of involvement with the 

organisations/individuals involved (Stakeholder analysis tool is available in the 

Procurement Toolkit) 

 

• identify responsibilities and actions 
 
 

Development of Local Businesses and Small/Medium 
Enterprises 
 

Where possible, use local suppliers to stimulate and maintain a sustainable 
local economy. Supporting local jobs and services will have a positive impact 
on the Brighton & Hove economy as a whole. It has been proven that a 
greater percentage of money spent employing local contractors is recycled 
back into the economy. This supports local businesses, shops and 
communities which in turn supports the council. This is known as the local 
multiplier effect, see example below:  
 
 
 
 

 

19



 
 

 

12 

 

Money spent locally recycled into the local economy 
 

 
 
 
 

Money spent nationally disappears from the local economy 
 

    
 

Using local contractors and providers where appropriate brings significant 
benefits to the local economy by: 

• Employing & training local people 

• Supporting local business 

• Paying local taxes which in turn can be recycled back into the 
community 

 
 “How to sell your services to Brighton & Hove City Council” produced by 
Corporate Procurement was designed to assist organisations who wish to bid 
for contracts. This guide is available on the Council’s web site.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

20



 
 

 

13 

 

Whole Life and Environment Impact Costs 
 
 
Whole Life costs  
These need to be taken into account during any procurement activity. The 
Treasury states that: "Government policy is that 'value for money' does not 
mean ‘the lowest price’. Instead, the optimum combination of whole life costs 
and quality to meet users' requirements is required".  The whole life cost 
provides a way of determining if it is cost effective to invest in more expensive 
supplies, services or works initially to reduce costs in the long run. 
 
For example, when procuring care services, it may be beneficial to work with 
partners and other agencies to keep clients in their own homes than to 
provide hospital care.  
For more information on whole life costs, refer to the Procurement toolkit.  
 
Environmental impact 
Assessments are undertaken for major projects.  A financial evaluation of the 
assessment will support the identification of whole life and environmental 
impact costs.  Where environmental factors are to be taken into account in a 
tender, legal advice must be sought to ensure tender evaluation criteria for 
environmental factors are directly linked to the subject of the public contract 
and relate to the economic advantage for the Council.  The criteria should also 
be identified in any EU notices inviting tenders. 

 
For small value contracts where there is potential for ‘high’ environmental 
impact, the approach to whole life cost assessments must be proportionate to 
the scope for impact and value of the purchase.  

 
Continuous Improvement  
The Council needs to drive continuous improvement during the life of any 
contract for supplies, services or works.  This can only be achieved by 
working closely with suppliers and contractors.  
 
Contract Management and Monitoring  
It is imperative to periodically review the contract’s progress to ensure that 
what has been agreed within the contract specification, clause or term is 
actually being delivered.  
For further or advice or guidance contact Corporate Procurement ext:4059  
 
Workforce Matters and Equalities  
Before tendering procurement officer should refer to the separate Code of 
Practice on “Workforce Matters and Equalities” (including TUPE). 
 

 
 
 
 
 

21



 
 

 

14 

 

 
 
 
 

End of Code of Practice 
 

Appendices and useful Weblinks follow 

22



 
 

 

15 

 

       Appendix 1 - Eco-labels 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

    

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Further information on Eco-labels can be found at:  
http://www.defra.gov.uk/environment/consumerprod/ecolabel/index.htm  
 http://www.gen.gr.jp/      
www.eco-labels.org 

 
 

EU Eco-label - Information on the European Eco-
labels listing all product groups can be found at on 
the European Community website at 
http://europa.eu.int/comm/environment/ecolabel 
 

The Nordic Swan Eco-labelling program is run by five 
Scandinavian countries (Norway, Sweden, Finland, 
Iceland, and Denmark) since 1989. Further information 
can be found at 
http://www.svanen.nu/Default.aspx?tabName=StartPage 

The Blue Angel Mark is an environmental label system 
promoted by the German government. Further information 
can be found at http://www.blauer-engel.de/en/index.php 
 

The Forest Stewardship Council is an 
international non-profit organisation founded in 1993 
to support environmentally appropriate, socially 
beneficial, and economically viable management of 
the world's forests. More information can be found at 
http://www.fsc-uk.org/ 
 

Fairtrade mark. - A product labelled with this 
has met a set of internationally agreed criteria 
around paying a fair price, enhancing the lives 
of the producers and their community, and 
working to set environmental standards. 
www.fairtrade.org.uk 

The Buy Recycled label promoted the closing of the 
recycling loop. 

23



 
 

 

16 

 

Appendix  1a 
Example of sustainability criteria adopted for contract tender evaluation 
Pre Qualification Questionnaire  - Sustainability 

 
8.1 Does your organisation have a board or staff member with specific 

responsibility for environmental / sustainability matters?   
    

YES NO 

8.2 Does your organisation have an environmental/ sustainability policy? 
  

YES  NO  

8.3 Has your organisation an environmental management system in place? 
         

YES             NO 

8.4 Does your organisation hold either of the following accreditations? 

 

     EMAS     YES   NO 

     ISO 14000/14001   YES  NO 

8.5 In the last three years has your organisation been subject to any court 
proceedings related to breaches of environmental legislation?  
         

                                                                                                        YES    NO 

 

8.6 If the answer to 8.5 is yes what was the result of these proceedings and 
what steps have you taken to rectify these infringements as a result of the 
proceedings? (If necessary please provide the answer on a separate sheet 
of paper) 

8.7  Are there any environmentally/sustainability beneficial processes, 
which your company operates, which you would like to bring to our 
attention? 

 

24



 
 

 

17 

 

 
Appendix  1b 

 
Example of sustainability criteria for contract tender evaluation  

 
Tender Schedule:  Environmental & Social Issues     
    
 
 

No. Criteria  Weighting/Points 

1 CO2 emissions, energy and  water conservation                   
 

 

2 The suitability/content of the Environmental policy 
  

 

3 Green procurement and use of local suppliers          
 

 

4 Waste minimisation & recycling  

5 Green transport and minimisation of fuel emissions  

6 How the organisation, during the life of the contract can  
assist the Council fulfil its aspirations of service delivery for 
this contract as outlined in the specification 

 

7 How the organisation during the life of the contract can 
assist the council to fulfil its commitment to its “Vision” 

 

8 Maintaining and improving the natural environment and 
biodiversity   

 

           
Please note:  Any sustainability award criteria must be relevant to the supplies, 
services or works being purchased and should reflect the requirements of the 
specification.   
 

25



 
 

 

18 

 

 
Appendix  2 EU Public Procurement Legislation 

 

EU Procurement Directives and corresponding UK Regulations apply 
to contracts whose value equals or exceeds specified financial 
thresholds. Although below threshold, contracts are still subject to the 
core principles of the EC Treaty. 
Basically they apply as follows: 

a. Specifications - contracting authorities are free under the rules to 
specify their requirements in green terms, provided the specifications 
are non-discriminatory and are consistent with the Directives' 
requirements on the use of European and other standards. For 
example, departments may specify that a product should be made out 
of materials that are or could be recycled, or those particular materials, 
such as ozone-depleting substances, should not be used in the 
product.  

b. Selection of tenderers - the Regulations set out detailed criteria for 
the selection of tenderers based on evidence of their economic and 
financial standing, their technical capacity and, for services, their ability. 
The nature of the evidence that may be requested of a technical 
capacity is exhaustive, so evidence on other factors may not be taken 
into account. In particular, questions about providers' general policies 
(e.g. on environmental issues) are not permitted. Purchasers are, 
however, allowed to reject candidates who have been convicted of a 
criminal offence or who have committed an act of gross misconduct in 
the course of their business, where they consider rejection to be 
justified. This may include infringement of environmental legislation or 
regulations.  

c. Award of contract - this is based on "the most economically 
advantageous" offer, i.e. the tender that fully meets the specification 
and represents best value for money, taking account of whole life costs 
and quality (or fitness for purpose). In order to award a contract on the 
basis of the most economically advantageous offer, the criteria to be 
used in the evaluation (whole life costs, quality etc) must be included in 
the contract notice or the contract documents. Also, any unusual or 
performance-related issues not linked to the subject matter of the 
contract must not form part of the evaluation criteria. 

d. Contract conditions - buyers should not as a matter of UK 
procurement policy attach conditions of contract that are irrelevant to 
the performance of the contract and achievement of value for money. 
Furthermore, conditions that are discriminatory are not allowed under 
EC rules.  
(Note: The procedural requirements that apply where contracts exceed 
specified financial thresholds are not dealt with in this Code of 
Practice). 

26



 
 

 

19 

 

Appendix  3 Example Clauses  
 

Extract of contract clauses  
The Council is committed to promoting sustainability through the use of its 
products and services.  The Contractor must therefore seek (where 
reasonably practicable) to minimise any negative environmental, social and 
economic effects connected with the Services and/or Supplies.  
The Contractor shall provide such information as the Council may reasonably 
request for the purpose of assessing the Contractor's compliance with 
Conditions -------- so far as relevant. 
 

Environmental Protection 
The Contractor shall ensure at all times that the impact of any operation of 
the Contractor in pursuance of its obligations under the Contract upon the 
environment is adequately and sufficiently considered, supervised, controlled 
and monitored at all times. 
The Council may from time to time during the Contract Period agree with the 
Contractor requirements on the Contractor for the protection of the 
environment and the Contractor shall comply with such requirements. 
 

Quality of Service 
The Contractor will have systems in place or working towards this, and 
operating that would achieve quality assurance accreditation to BS 5750 or 
ISO 9002 and to exercise quality controls and other checks necessary to 
ensure quality Service. 
Environmental Management System ISO 14001 – The Council will require the 
Contractor to work towards accreditation during the Period of the Contract. 
 

Consultation 
Central to achieving VFM value is a focus on consultation with users and 
other stakeholders to establish need and demand for services. Seeking and 
responding to customer feedback is also essential to a culture of continuous 
improvement. 
When required by the Supervising Officer, the Contractor shall co-operate 
with the Council's initiatives aimed at improving the provision of the Services 
 

Materials  
It is not the intention of the Council to impose any unnecessary or 
unreasonable restrictions on the Contractor’s choice of materials.  Therefore, 
unless otherwise instructed, any reference to a particular brand name is 
intended to mean “brand name” or the equivalent 
 

Example Specifications 
 
Aspirational  Specification - (Catering) 
 
B&HCC recognise its responsibility to carry out its procurement activities in 
an environmentally and socially responsible manner. We will strive to 
incorporate environmental and social considerations into our product and 
service selection process. We recognise that it is our responsibility to 
encourage our suppliers and contractors to minimise negative environmental 
and social effects with the products and services they provide. We will also 
strive to ensure that local and smaller suppliers are not discriminated against 
in the procurement process and specifications. 
Specifically we aim to: 

27



 
 

 

20 

 

Give preference to products and services that can be manufactured, used 
and disposed of in an environmentally and socially responsible way. 
Ensure that sustainability criteria are included in specifications to suppliers. 
Ensure that sustainability criteria are used in the award of contracts. 
Consider whole life costs when assessing product suitability and in the award 
of contracts. 
Encourage internal purchasers to review their consumption of goods and 
materials in order to reduce usage. 
Ensure non-discrimination against local and smaller suppliers (subject to 
compliance with EU and UK statutory regulations) 
 

Quality Considerations 
B&HCC would like contractors to consider, but not limited to, the following 
selection criteria and quality considerations when making purchasing 
decisions and menu plans: 
All eggs to be free range 
No genetically modified food and no meat from animals fed with foodstuffs 
All tea and coffee to be Fairtrade (see policy) 
Meals must follow healthy eating guidelines and contribute to health 
promotion 
All milk, flour, rice and beef to be organic 
Menus must reflect seasonality 
All fish must be from sustainable fisheries 
All other meat and poultry to be ‘Farm Assured’ (option % of supply) 
All delivery containers must be re-usable 
The ‘Food Miles’ travelled by products should always be the lowest possible 
in order to satisfy the contract. 
Caution: Contract Officers should be aware of EU tendering requirements.  
As this process is developing current advice is that where estimated tender 
values are in excess of EU thresholds legal advice should be sought to 
ensure that proposals to include sustainability issues are non- discriminatory 
and in compliance the EU tendering rules. 

28



 
 

 

21 

 

 Appendix  4: Council Contacts 

 
Sustainability issues  Sustainability Team 

Contact Thurstan Crockett  Ext. 2503 
 

Works Contract issues  Property & Design team 
     Contact Angela Dymott  Ext. 1450 
 

Health & Safety issues  Health & Safety Team 
     Contact Hilary Ellis     Ext. 1305 
 

Equalities issues   Equalities Implementation Officer 
     Contact Judy Redford   Ext. 1343 
 

Stakeholder Involvement issues Research Team 
     Contact David Golding  Ext. 1088 
 

Legal issues    Legal Services 
     Contact Sonia Likhari  Ext. 3934 
 
Animal Welfare Charter                 Public Safety Division 
                                                      Contact  Tim Nichols  Ext. 2163  
 
Reference Documents 
Available on the Sustainability Web Page -  
Sustainability Strategy 
Sustainability Action Plans (good source of info - also on Wave) 
Sustainability check list.  (major planning applications). 

29



 
 

 

22 

 

Appendix  4a:  Useful Websites and links 
 

http://brighton-hove.sustainabilitychecklist.co.uk/   
www.sustainable-development.gov.uk - sustainable development in government website 
www.environment-agency.gov.uk - The Environment Agency 
www.ethicalconsumer.org.uk – Ethical Consumer magazine for product advice 
http://www.sd-commission.org.uk/ - The Sustainable Development Commission 
www.defra.gov.uk/environment/ - DEFRA environmental web pages 
http://www.defra.gov.uk/Environment/consumerprod/energylabels/index.htm 
http://europa.eu/index_en.htm - The EU homepage 
www.eco-labels.org - The Consumers Union guide to environmental labels 
www.cips.org - Chartered Institute of Purchasing & Supply 
www.iema.net - Institute of Environmental Management and Assessment 
www.epe.be - European Partners for the Environment 
www.cfsd.org.uk/nepd - Centre for Sustainable Design's Eco-design checklists 
www.ogc.gov.uk -The Office of Government Commerce 
www.fairtrade.org.uk – Fairtrade D 
http://www.ogc.gov.uk/procurement.asp - OGC Procurement 
www.bre.co.uk -  For works and building contracts 
www.wellbuilt.org.uk -  For works and building contracts 
http://www.wastewatch.org.uk/Homepage - Waste minimisation 
www.iso.org – International Standards Organisation 
www.emas.org.uk  - Environmental Management System 
http://www.s-p-i-n.co.uk/ - Sustainable Procurement  
Information Network 
http://www.southeastiep.gov.uk/page.asp?PageRef=3 – South East Centre of Excellence 
http://www.actionsustainability.com/ - Actionsustainability  
 
Food links: 
www.fairtrade.org.uk/   
www.defra.gov.uk  
www.countryside.gov.uk  
www.soilassociation.org 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 
 

 

23 

 

 
Appendix 5: SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT CHECKLIST  

 
This checklist has been developed to assist Contract Officers to apply the council’s 
Procurement Code of Practice – Sustainability, when writing specifications for goods 
and services contracts and producing associated tender documents. Reference to 
the Code of Practice should be made when using the checklist. Proper use of this 
checklist will ensure that all of the key sustainability issues have been considered in 
the course of producing a contract specification.  
For tenders that incorporate a Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) consideration 
should be given to the inclusion of some relevant sustainability questions within the 
PQQ itself. A useful example is given in Appendix 1a of the Sustainability Code of 
Practice. Appendix 1b of the Code of Practice provides an example of a format for 
the evaluation of relevant sustainability criteria. 
It will not be necessary to consider all of the issues/questions in this checklist for all 
tenders. In such cases it is suggested that the boxes be marked N/A. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 

 

Waste 

1. Is it possible to avoid purchasing the goods or services? Could existing 
goods/equipment be used repaired or upgraded? Could the services be provided ‘in-
house’? 

2. Could an alternative specification be used that would reduce waste and/or be less 
harmful to the environment? 

3. Have you given full consideration to issues such as repair and maintenance of 
equipment? 

4. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference for) products and/or 
packaging to be made of recycled, recyclable or biodegradable materials? 

5. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers limit the 
amount of waste generated (e.g. by reducing packaging) and that they reuse or recycle 
their waste materials? 

Water & Energy 

6. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers take 
steps to conserve water e.g. through good housekeeping, use of water saving 
devices/appliances, rainwater harvesting grey water recycling? 

7. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers take 
steps to conserve energy e.g. through energy efficiency of buildings, operations or 
equipment appliances, use of renewable energy? 

8. Is it possible to specify a product with a lower level of ‘embodied’ energy? (embodied 
energy is the sum of the energy used in extracting the raw materials, transporting and 
processing these materials, and in manufacturing, packaging and delivering the finished 
product). 

Food and Drink  

9. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that food and/or drink 
supplied is produced using sustainable methods e.g. organic production or sustainable 
farming practices? 

10. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference for) the supply of locally 
produced seasonal food and/or drink? 

31



 
 

 

24 

 

11. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers indicate 
the ‘food miles’ travelled in the production and supply of food and/or drink, or to set a 
‘food miles’ limit? 

12. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference for) the provision of Fair-
trade produce? (particularly relevant to food or drink, e.g. tea and coffee)  

13. Is there a need to specify that providers cater for ethnic cultural and religious diets? 

14. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that food and/or drink 
should promote healthy living or to meet specified nutritional standards?  

Materials & Transport 

15. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference for) on-line ordering and 
reporting, invoicing etc to be available to reduce the paper used in these transactions. 

16. Is there an opportunity to specify (or express a preference for) the supply use of 
products with an appropriate Ecolabel or other green label? 

17. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference for) the supply/use of 
products that are free from hazardous or polluting materials? 

18. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that the use of 
chemicals should be avoided or reduced, or to require that biodegradable chemicals are 
used? 

19. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that products are 
sourced from natural materials and/or renewable sources and extracted or harvested by 
environmentally sound methods, e.g. sustainable timber from a source certified by the 
FSC?  

20. Is there an opportunity to specify (or express a preference for) the supply/use of 
materials that do not cause significant damaging effects to biodiversity and/or the natural 
environment? 

21. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that goods should be 
sourced locally (care must be exercised to avoid discrimination) 

22. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers use fuel 
efficient or low (or even zero) emission vehicles? 

23. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers limit the 
numbers of journeys or the miles travelled in the course of providing the goods or 
services? 

Electrical & Electronic Equipment  

24. Is there an opportunity to specify that items of electrical and/or electronic equipment 
are provided with a suitably located on/off switch that will enable them to be isolated from 
the electricity supply in addition to a standby mode? 

25. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers collect 
items of electrical and/or electronic equipment that are to be replaced for appropriate re-
use or recycling?* 

(* During 2007 the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Regulations 2006 will 
come into force. These Regulations will place burdens mainly on the producers of 
electrical/electronic equipment to ensure that suitable arrangements are in place to 
ensure that waste electrical and electronic products are re-used or suitably recycled). 

Environmental Management 

26. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers be 
certified under ISO 14000 or EMAS?  

27. Is there an opportunity to specify (or express a preference) that providers use 
methods of working that do not cause significant damaging effects to biodiversity and/or 
the natural environment? 

32



 
 

 

25 

 

28. Is there an opportunity to give the opportunity to providers to indicate any beneficial 
environmental effects of their operations? 

Substantiating Environmental Claims - See the CoP for guidance on this 
SOCIAL & ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY 

Stakeholder Involvement 

29. Have you ensured that key stakeholders have been involved in preparing the 
specification? 

See the CoP for specific guidance on this 

Development of Business 

30. Have you taken all appropriate steps to enable local suppliers and SMEs to bid for 
the contract? 

Developing the Community & Voluntary Sector (ChangeUP) 

31. Have you taken all appropriate steps to enable the Community and Voluntary Sector 
to bid for the contract? 

Contractor Performance 

32. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers be 
certified under a quality management system such as ISO 9000? 

Workforce Matters and Equalities – See separate CoP on this 

33. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers have 
Investors in People accreditation and/or offer training schemes or apprenticeships? 

34. Is there an opportunity to specify (or to express a preference) that providers employ 
people who live locally? 

35. Have you included all relevant information on legislation and good practice in 
relation to equalities issues in employment and service delivery? 

Health & Safety – See separate CoP on this 

36. Have you ensured that all relevant health & safety issues have been properly 
covered in the specification and contract? 

Fair-trade – See question 12 under Food & Drink 

Animal Welfare Charter 

37. Have you ensured that any animal welfare issues have been properly addressed 
within the terms of the council’s Animal Welfare Charter? 

Whole Life Costs – See the CoP and the Whole Life Costing Summary on the 
Wave 

38. Have you considered all elements of the whole life costs involved in providing the 
goods or services with respect to how the goods/services are to be priced and in 
relation to environmental impacts? 

In those cases where sustainability issues constitute a significant 
component of the specification it will be appropriate to establish 
sustainability as a criterion for the assessment of tenders. Contract 
Officers will need to ensure that any specific contract conditions relating 
to sustainability are properly enforced. 
 
 
 

33



 
 

 

26 

 

 
Glossary  
 
ChangeUp – programme of capacity building for the voluntary and community 
sector (ChangeUP) 
Ecolabel – European Labelling scheme for products that meet high 
environmental standards (DEFRA - Ecolabel) 
EMAS – Eco-Management and Audit Scheme (http://www.emas.org.uk) 
Fair-trade – Scheme to enable disadvantaged producers in the developing 
world to get a fair deal (Fair-trade) 
FSC – Forest Stewardship Council (http://www.fsc-uk.org) 
ISO 9000 & ISO 14000– International Organisation for Standards Quality & 
Environmental Management Systems (ISO9000-14000) 

SMEs – Small and Medium-sized Enterprises 
 
Checklist produced by: HCS Sustainability Group Feb 2007 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

34



  

 

2
7
 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 -
 F
le
x
ib
le
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 
 

 
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6
 

 
T
H
E
 F
L
E
X
IB
L
E
 

F
R
A
M
E
W
O
R
K
  

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
v
e
l 
1
  

E
m
b
e
d
 L
e
v
e
l 
2
  

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
  

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
4
  

L
e
a
d
 L
e
v
e
l 
5
  

P
e
o
p
le
  

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
K
e
y
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

b
a
s
ic
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
. 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 k
e
y
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

A
ll 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
s
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
a
s
ic
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
. 
K
e
y
 s
ta
ff
 h
a
s
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
. 
 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
n
 

la
te
s
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
. 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
in
c
lu
d
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
fa
c
to
rs
. 
S
im
p
le
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 c
ri
te
ri
a
. 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
 

a
n
d
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
. 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
w
a
rd
s
 

a
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 i
s
 o
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
G
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

P
o
li
c
y
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
  

A
g
re
e
 o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
  

A
u
g
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
  

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
: 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
, 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 
S
im
p
le
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 b
y
 C
E
O
. 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 

s
u
p
p
lie
rs
. 
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

p
o
lic
y
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

s
u
p
p
lie
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 E
n
s
u
re
 

it
 i
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 w
id
e
r 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
o
 

s
ta
ff
, 
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 i
n
to
 a
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 r
is
k
, 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
, 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
, 
s
u
p
p
lie
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 b
y
 C
E
O
. 
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
. 
T
ry
 t
o
 l
in
k
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 E
M
S
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

in
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 

e
x
te
rn
a
lly
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
 E
M
S
. 
T
h
e
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 b
y
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
le
a
d
e
rs
, 
is
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 w
id
e
ly
. 
A
 

d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

to
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a
 n
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
is
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
  

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

K
e
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 c
ri
te
ri
a
. 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 

o
f 
v
a
lu
e
-f
o
r-
m
o
n
e
y
, 
n
o
t 
lo
w
e
s
t 

p
ri
c
e
. 
P
ro
c
u
re
rs
 a
d
o
p
t 
Q
u
ic
k
 

W
in
s
. 
 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
k
e
y
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 

ri
s
k
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
. 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

m
o
s
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
. 
W
h
o
le
-l
if
e
-

c
o
s
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
d
o
p
te
d
. 
 

A
ll 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 r
is
k
s
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
R
is
k
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
. 
  

D
e
ta
ile
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
h
ig
h
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
. 
P
ro
je
c
t/
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
. 
A
 l
if
e
-c
y
c
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

c
o
s
t/
im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
is
 

a
p
p
lie
d
. 
 

L
if
e
-c
y
c
le
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 

c
o
m
m
o
d
it
y
 a
re
a
s
. 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 K
e
y
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
. 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 r
e
w
a
rd
e
d
 o
r 

p
e
n
a
lis
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
B
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
. 
B
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

35



  

 

2
8
 

   
T
H
E
 F
L
E
X
IB
L
E
 

F
R
A
M
E
W
O
R
K
  

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
v
e
l 
1
  

E
m
b
e
d
 L
e
v
e
l 
2
  

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
  

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
4
  

L
e
a
d
 L
e
v
e
l 
5
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

E
n
g
a
g
in
g
 S
u
p
p
li
e
rs
  

K
e
y
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
K
e
y
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 f
o
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 

s
o
u
g
h
t.
  
 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
lie
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
it
ia
te
d
, 
w
it
h
 

s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 
 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

T
w
o
 w
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
ro
c
u
re
r 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
lie
r 
e
x
is
ts
 w
it
h
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
. 

S
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
s
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 s
p
e
n
d
 

a
re
a
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
p
p
e
d
. 
 

K
e
y
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 f
o
r 

in
te
n
s
iv
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
u
d
it
s
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
. 
C
E
O
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
lie
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

S
u
p
p
lie
rs
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
C
E
O
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
. 
B
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 

o
th
e
r/
p
e
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
u
p
p
lie
rs
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
y
 

m
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

th
e
ir
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 p
ro
fi
le
 t
o
 

k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
. 
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
  

K
e
y
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
re
a
s
. 
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 

re
fi
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
ro
c
u
re
rs
 

a
n
d
 a
re
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 

a
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 s
c
o
re
 c
a
rd
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 b
o
th
 i
n
p
u
t 

a
n
d
 o
u
tp
u
t.
 C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 w
it
h
 p
e
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 d
ri
v
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 p
e
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 

c
le
a
rl
y
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
. 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

d
o
m
a
in
. 
 

 
 

36



SUSTAINABILITY 
CABINET COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 26 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Urban Biosphere City Status 

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2009 

Report of: Director of Strategy & Governance 

Contact Officers: Name:  Mita Patel, Matthew Thomas Tel: 29-3332, 29-2371 

 E-mail: mita.patel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
matthew.thomas@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 This report outlines proposals for Brighton and Hove to achieve the status of 

Urban Biosphere City. It summarises outcomes from the 2008 Sustainability 
Conference where the proposal was explored and presents proposals for moving 
forward.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  
2.1 (1) That the Cabinet Committee affirms the council’s commitment to work 

towards designation of Brighton & Hove as an Urban Biosphere.  
 
2.2 (2) That the Cabinet Committee seeks integration of the Urban Biosphere target 

into the work programmes of the City Sustainability Partnership and 2020 
Community Partnership. 

 
2.3 (3) That the Cabinet Committee, working with the 2020 Community Partnership, 

publishes an agreed strategy and costed action plan to set out the steps 
required to achieve Urban Biosphere status. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
 Purpose and Benefits of Biosphere Reserves 
 
3.1 Biosphere Reserves are designated by the United Nations Educational, Scientific 

and Cultural Organization (UNESCO). Biosphere Reserves are a unique 
designation in that they recognise the need to achieve the conservation of 
biological diversity alongside a high quality of life for people. The over-arching 
purpose of Biosphere Reserves is therefore to promote biodiversity conservation 
as a vehicle for achieving sustainable economic and social development. 

37



 
3.2 At present there are over 500 Biosphere Reserves distributed over more than 

100 countries, including nine in the UK. Although some Reserves across the 
world include sizeable urban populations, all the UK Reserves so far designated 
are rural and relatively remote. 

 
3.3 The 2006 Brighton & Hove Sustainable Community Strategy is perhaps unique in 

the UK in committing the 2020 Partnership to work towards designation of the 
city as a Biosphere Reserve. If successful, Brighton & Hove would be the first city 
in the UK to achieve this status. 

 
3.4 The benefits of Biosphere Reserve status for Brighton and Hove include: 

 
§ Setting new standards of excellence for integrating biodiversity into city living 

to improve quality of life, involving opportunities to establish new partnerships 
and working relationships. 

 
§ International and national recognition of Brighton & Hove as a ‘sustainable 

city’ with consequential benefits to tourism and economic development 
amongst others. 

 
§ A vehicle for raising awareness and improving community cohesion and 

involvement in local decision-making. 
 
§ Opportunities for additional external funding. 

 
 Sustainability Conference 2008 
 
3.5 The Brighton & Hove City Council Sustainability Conference, held in October 

2008, explored in detail what it might mean for Brighton and Hove to become an 
urban Biosphere Reserve. The conference was organised in partnership with the 
University of Brighton with financial help from the Environment Agency. The 
conference was supported at the highest level, with the Leader and Deputy 
Leader of the council both making presentations and the Chief Executive of the 
council and Pro-Vice Chancellor of Brighton University chairing conference 
sessions.  

 
3.6 The two day conference attracted 250 delegates from a wide variety of sectors 

including city residents, UNESCO representatives, architects, local community 
and residents associations, various interest groups, the public sector and 
academia. There were also 22 exhibitors from a broad range of organisations 
and community groups, tours of the neighbouring One Brighton development 
provided by the developers, Bioregional Quintain, and participatory workshops 
which provided delegates with opportunities to engage in debating and exploring 
some key themes.  

 
3.7 The conference agenda included presentations from 15 experts from across 

Europe on a broad range of subjects. These included the benefits of biodiversity 
to urban renewal and economic development; the social, educational and 
community benefits of urban biodiversity; the opportunities for urban food 

38



production and the health benefits of urban biodiversity. Question and answer 
sessions provided opportunities for delegates to debate key issues in the local 
context. 

 
3.8 Key findings from the conference included: 

 
§ There is considerable potential to involve local people in the design and 

management of communal open space. Experience from other urban areas 
has shown that such involvement would promote community cohesion and 
reduce the fear of crime. Urban Biosphere status would set the standard for a 
step change in this area and potentially draw in new sources of funding and 
expertise for delivery. 

 
§ Opportunities for synergy between the health agenda and urban biosphere 

status are substantial. GPs are already prescribing improved access to 
natural open space to help address physical and mental health problems. 
There is potential to establish a ‘Natural Health Service’ for the city based, on 
a number of successful initiatives from around the country, with offered 
support from Natural England. 

 
§ Urban Biosphere status would help to mainstream pioneering work by the 

University of Brighton and the Brighton and Hove Food Partnership to 
promote urban food growing which would have a range of benefits to the city. 

 
§ Best practice across European cities has shown that there is potential to draw 

substantial economic benefits to an urban area by recognising environmental 
improvement as a key driver for change. 

 
§ Provided the goals are clearly set and agreed from the outset, urban 

biodiversity initiatives can promote development and therefore support private 
sector investment. 

 
§ Brighton and Hove has already drawn keen interest from UNESCO in its 

Biosphere aspirations because of the potential to learn lessons for other cities 
across the world. There is potential to work with this momentum at national 
and international levels. 

 
3.9 Despite being promoted as a local event, the conference received national and 

international as well as local media attention. This highlighted the high level of 
interest in the urban Biosphere concept and the broader benefits the city would 
gain if it chose to commit to achieving Biosphere Reserve status. 

 
 The Way Forward 
 
3.10 UNESCO has an established application procedure for achieving Biosphere 

Reserve status which would require commitment from a range of organisations 
across the city and the integration of the aspirations of the Biosphere Reserve 
concept into decision making at high level. The key requirements which would 
need to be delivered for a Biosphere Reserve application to be successful 
include: 

39



 
§ The 2020 Community Partnership would need to adopt Biosphere Reserve 

status as a part of its core business. 
 
§ The council would need to be able to demonstrate wide buy-in to the concept 

from a documented consultation process and letters of support from key 
organisations in the city. 

 
§ A dossier of information would need to be compiled on the wildlife of 

international importance within the city, including sites and habitats of 
international value, their condition and the plans proposed to achieve and 
maintain their favourable conservation status. 

 
3.11 A next step towards Biosphere Reserve designation would be to map and 

quantify the processes which would need to be put in place, for consideration by 
the council (and the 2020 Community Partnership). This ‘Biosphere Action Plan’ 
could be written within existing resources, although the Plan would be unlikely to 
be completed before autumn 2009. A full Biosphere Reserve application would 
take some months longer to compile and therefore submission to UNESCO 
would be unlikely before autumn 2010, within existing resources.  

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Consultation on the recommendations have been undertaken with the Council’s 

Sustainability Team and with the Environment Directorate’s City Services 
Division. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The report recommendations would have no direct financial implications for the 

council, and the strategy and action plan could be written within existing financial 
resources. However the delivery of Biosphere Reserve status is likely to involve 
costs which are currently unknown. 

  
 Finance Officer Consulted:   Patrick Rice  Date:  10/12/2008 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.  However, in 

developing a strategy for achieving Urban Biosphere status, the Council and 
its partners should consider how this dovetails with legislation such as the 
Climate Change Act 2008, the Marine & Coastal Access Bill, and any 
proposals submitted from residents or businesses in Brighton & Hove under 
the Sustainable Communities Act 2007. 
 
Lawyer Consulted:  Oliver Dixon   Date: 10/12/2008 

 
 

40



Equalities Implications: 
 

5.3 The strategy for achieving Biosphere Reserve status would need to engage 
a broad spectrum of the community as an explicit condition of the UNESCO 
Biosphere Reserve application procedure. This would take account of the 
council’s Community Engagement Framework. 

  
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 A key objective of Biosphere Reserve status is the conservation of biological 

diversity which is also a central objective of Sustainability. It is also anticipated 
that Biosphere Reserve status would have a positive effect on reducing the 
council’s climate change impact. 

 
Crime & Disorder Implications:  

 
5.5 None. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 The main risks are: 

 
§ The city fails to achieve Biosphere Reserve status after investing time and 

resources into working towards it. 
 
§ A lack of buy-in and support from the wider community and from key partners 

across the city. 
 

§ Other priorities may lead to a failure to adequately integrate Biosphere 
Reserve objectives into the agenda of the 2020 Community Partnership. 

 
5.7 There are significant opportunities that support the proposal including: 
 

§ Existing recognition and commitment from the 2020 Community Partnership 
via the Sustainable Community Strategy for the Biosphere Reserve proposal 
to be a priority for the city. 

 
§ The experiences and commitment created from the 2008 Sustainability 

Conference. Key achievements initiated from the conference included: 
 

- cross-party support 
 
- support from key partners and experts  

 
- support from the wider Brighton & Hove community 

 
- the creation of contacts and networks on key themes such as health, 

social inclusion and education 
 

- access for the city to relevant expertise in the various themes considered. 

41



- recognition and support from high level within UNESCO to enable the 
proposal to be successfully taken forward. 

 
5.8 Existing and emerging policy supporting the Biosphere Reserve concept 

including the draft Core Strategy of the Local Development Framework (which 
explicitly refers to the Biosphere Reserve objective), a draft Supplementary 
Planning Document for integrating nature conservation into new developments in 
the city, the emerging Open Space Strategy and various projects and initiatives 
either already underway or scheduled within City Parks. 

  
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.9 The economic benefits to the city as an ‘urban biosphere’ tourist destination. 
 
5.10 The health benefits to the city through: improved access to biodiverse open 

spaces and corridors, access to locally grown food, and increased access to 
sustainable homes and transport. 

 
5.11 Implications for community engagement and active participation in setting out an 

urban biodiversity plan for the city and in helping to achieve it. 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Conference agenda 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None  
 
Background Documents 
 
None 

42



 
            
 
 
 

    

 

Brighton & Hove Sustainability Conference 08 
Brighton and Hove: the UK’s first Urban Biosphere Reserve? 

 
30th & 31st October 2008,  

Brighton Study Centre (Bellerbys College), Brighton 
 
Our global society crossed a watershed in 2007 when, for the first time, 50% of the 
world’s population lived in cities. Today, to achieve truly sustainable societies, we 
must establish sustainable urban environments. 
 
The Sustainable Community Strategy for Brighton and Hove includes a commitment 
to work towards designation of the city ‘as the first UK Urban Biosphere Reserve’.  
Biosphere Reserves, designated by UNESCO, could be described as ‘centres of 
excellence’ where economic and social development is promoted in tandem with the 
optimal conservation of ecosystems and biodiversity. 
 
But what will designation as a ‘biosphere city’ really mean for Brighton and Hove? 
Green space and biodiversity make a crucial contribution to urban living, for example 
by delivering essential ecological services, lessening the effects of climate change, 
providing a focus for communities to meet, exercise, grow food, or simply relax. But 
where competition for land and resources is acute, what priority should biodiversity 
be given in city planning and how can the benefits of biodiversity be delivered most 
effectively and efficiently? 
 
How might a ‘biosphere city’ guide policy and shape new development, transport, 
education and housing? And how might designation as a biosphere city affect the day-
to-day lives of people living in and visiting Brighton and Hove?  
 
This conference will begin to address these questions and to map out a vision of 
what an ‘urban biosphere city’ might look like. 
 

43



Programme  
 

Day 1: Strategic Issues 
 

8.00 – 9.00 Setting up of stalls  
9.15 – 10.00 Registration / coffee / networking 
10.00 – 10.05 Conference open / Chairs welcome Prof. Stuart Laing,  

Pro-Vice Chancellor,  
The University of Brighton 

10.05 – 10.15 Opening speaker Cllr Mary Mears, 
Leader, Brighton & Hove City 
Council 

10.15 – 10.45 Keynote Speaker 1  
What are the potential roles and added 
values of an Urban Biosphere? 

Prof. Thomas Elmqvist,  
Stockholm University, Sweden 

10.45 – 11.15 Keynote Speaker 2 
The city as a biosphere 

Prof Helga Fassbinder, 

 

Editor in chief of Biotope City 
Journal, Amsterdam & Paris 

11.15 – 11.45 Refreshments / networking 
11.45 – 12.15 The benefits of urban biodiversity to 

people 
Mathew Frith,  
Landscape Regeneration Manager 
Peabody Trust 

12.15 – 12.45 Question & Answer session Facilitated by Prof. Stuart Laing 
12.45 – 14.00 Lunch / networking / Tour - One Brighton site by Pooran Desai 
14.00 – 14.10 Welcome and Scene-setting Alan McCarthy,  

CEO  
Brighton & Hove City Council 

14.10 – 14.30 Housing in the Biosphere City – ‘One 
Planet Living’ 

Pooran Desai,  
Sustainability Director  
Bioregional Quintain * 

14.30 – 14.50 Health in the Biosphere City – how 
might healthy lifestyles be promoted? 

Dr William Bird 
Strategic Health Advisor  
Natural England 

14.50 – 15.25 Refreshments / networking / Tour – One Brighton site by Pooran Desai 
15.25 – 15.45 Growing food in the biosphere city – 

what is the potential? 
Andre Viljoen,  
Senior Lecturer in the School of 
Architecture and Design  
The University of Brighton  

15.45 – 16.05 Open space in the biosphere city - 
Green Networks - lessons learned from 
the Thames Gateway 

Brian McDonald 
Senior Specialist, Thames 
Gateway, Natural England 

16.05 – 16.25 The greening of Linz, Austria – a 
European City perspective 

Edmund Maurer  
Municipality of Linz, Austria 

16.25 – 16.45 The commercial drivers for urban 
greening 

Duncan Young  
Head of Sustainability, Lend 
Lease Retail UK 

16.45 – 17.25 Question & Answer session Facilitated by Alan McCarthy 
17.25 Conference day 1 end 
17.25 – 18.00 Stall holders / networking 
18.00 Conference day 1 close 

44



Day 2: Local Action 
 

 
 

8.00 – 9.00 Setting up of stalls  
9.15 – 9.50 Registration / coffee / networking 
9.50 – 9.55 Conference open / Chairs 

introduction 
Cllr Denise Cobb  
Deputy Leader, Brighton & 
Hove City Council 

9.55 – 10.00 Chairs welcome Dr Niall Burnside  
School of Environment and 
Technology, The University of 
Brighton  

10.00 – 10.20 Architecture PBL 
(of Brighton Study Centre / 
Bellerbys College) 

Rupert Cook  
Architecture PLB 

10.20 – 10.40 Building Green – encouraging 
biodiversity on buildings  

Dusty Gedge  
Urban Ecologist  

10.40 – 11.00 School Grounds – benefits to 
biodiversity and education 

Dr Dan Danahar  
Dorothy Stringer School 

11.00 – 11.30 Refreshments / networking   
11.30 – 11.50 Breaking new ground: local food 

production on housing estates 
and public spaces 

Clare Devereux 
Food Matters and The Brighton 
& Hove Food Partnership 

11.50 – 12.10 The benefits of biodiversity on 
housing estates 

John Little  
Environmental Consultant 

12.10 – 12.30 Engaging people - community 
groups and biodiversity 

Phil Belden  
Brighton Urban Wildlife Group 

12.30 – 13.00 Question & Answer session Facilitated by Dr Niall Burnside 
13.00 – 14.15 Lunch / networking / Tour – One Brighton site by Daniel Viliesid 

Workshops session  Break into workshop groups 
(in separate workshop rooms) 

14.15 – 15.15 

Tour - One Brighton site Daniel Viliesid 
15.15 – 16.00 Workshop presentations & discussions in plenary 
16.00 - 17.30 Stall holders / networking 
17.30 Conference close 

* Tours of the One Brighton site will be led by Pooran Desai and Daniel Viliesid 
from Bioregional Quintain. Tours will be for a limited number but run twice 
each day. 
 

45



46



SUSTAINABILIT CABINET 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 27 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Sustainable Cities Index 

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2009 

Report of: Director of Strategy & Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Thurstan Crockett Tel: 29-2503 

 E-mail: thurstan.crockett@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 To give committee members details of Brighton and Hove’s ranking in the 2008 

national Sustainable Cities Index. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

  
2.1 (1) That the Cabinet Committee notes the content of the report and considers 

what might be done to improve performance across all indicators. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 Brighton and Hove was last year judged the most sustainable city in Britain 

according to The Sustainable Cities Index produced by independent sustainable 
development charity Forum for the Future.  

 
3.2 This year the City dropped one place in the overall sustainability rankings, but 

still finished 2nd out of 20 UK cities “with Bristol just snatching the top slot from 
Brighton & Hove” in a very close contest, according to the Forum report authors.  
“With third-placed Plymouth, these are the cities which continue to outperform 
the rest of the group”. 

 
3.3  The city was still top for groups of indicators relating to quality of life and “future 

proofing”.  The overall sustainability ranking table, with 2007 rankings for 
comparison, is as follows: 

 

2008 position  City 2007 position

1 Bristol 3 

2 Brighton & Hove 1 

3 Plymouth 4 

4 Newcastle 8 

5 Cardiff 6 

6 Edinburgh 2 

47



 

 

7 Sheffield 7 

8 Leicester 14 

9 London 10 

10= Bradford 9 

10= Nottingham 11 

12 Sunderland 13 

13 Leeds 5 

14 Coventry 17 

15 Manchester 12 

16 Wolverhampton 16 

17 Liverpool 20 

18 Glasgow 15 

19 Birmingham 19 

20 Hull 18 

 
3.4 Though not scored, the City also recorded the lowest carbon dioxide emissions 

per capita. This is no cause for complacency, as per capita emissions may be 
lower here due to relatively milder climate and denser living patterns, as well as 
relatively high public transport use; and the city has also been relatively fortunate 
in the indicators selected for measurement overall, but it is nonetheless relatively 
good performance. 

 
3.5 The top score in “future proofing” is particularly pleasing as this reflects: 

 
§ The council’s commitment to preparing for climate change 
 
§ The number of green businesses in the city 

 
§ The city’s biodiversity 

 
§ Recycling and composting rates 

 
3.6 Top score in quality of life is important because it measured levels of education, 

health (life expectancy), employment and satisfaction with green space and 
transport in each city.  Researchers also spoke to local residents about their 
views. 

 
3.7 The city came 14= (compared to 15th in 2007) on an environmental impact group 

of indicators that aim to reflect the condition of land, water and air.  The scoring 
in this group of indicators may well have worked against the city’s position fro two 
reasons:  

 
a) the city was again given an average score for river water quality as it has no 

river, in spite of suggestions that bathing water quality be measured instead; 
 
b) a change in the way that air quality is measured from PM10 (particulates) to 

nitrogen oxides (NO2). This is a questionable decision as the health impact 
of particulates is more demonstrable than NO2. It must also be harder to 
monitor progress with changing criteria. 

 
 

48



 

 

   
3.8 Overall it would appear that the city has just slipped a place not due to worsening 

performance but to relative improvement by Bristol, which came first. 
 
4. CONSULTATION 

  
4.1 Environmental Health and Communications colleagues have been consulted and 

the views of Environmental Health officers incorporated above. 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
  
5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Peter Francis Date: 11/12/08 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 There are no adverse legal implications contained in this report but the public 

sector are expected to lead the  way in energy efficiency and the Climate Change 
and Sustainable Energy Act contains specific provisions for local authorities to 
have regard to information on energy measures in exercising functions. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Anna MacKenzie Date: 22/12/08 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The affluence and high educational achievement of a significant number of city 

dwellers in the Quality of Life section of Forum’s report does not reflect the 
substantial inequalities in the city. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
   
5.4 This index is just one, albeit high profile, way of measuring the comparative 

sustainability of the city and its overall performance. 
 

 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
5.5 None. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
  
5.6 There are reputational risks for the city and the City Council, especially if the 

city’s ranking were to slip further.   This could be mitigated by occasional review 
of performance against all the indicators in the Index - some of which are not 
currently monitored formally - with action taken according to performance. 

 
5.7 There are opportunities for the city to promote itself (see below), particularly in 

relation to top ranking in quality of life and future proofing baskets of indicators. 
 

49



 

 

 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 The Index receives considerable publicity each year on its publication and may 

therefore have an impact on reputation and public perception of the city as a 
whole, as a place to live, work, invest, or visit. 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  

  
6.1 None 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
7.1 The city has slipped one place in the rankings and it may be useful to have a 

closer look at why and whether this can be affected for next year. 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Sustainable Cities Briefing Note – Brighton & Hove (source: Forum for the 

Future) 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Sustainable Cities Index 2008: 

http://www.forumforthefuture.org/files/sustainable_cities_051108_links_final.pdf 
 
2. Sustainable Cities Index 2007: 

 http://www.forumforthefuture.org/files/sustainablecities07.pdf 

50



Sustainable Cities Index       Briefing note 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Brighton and Hove 
 
Overall ranking for 2008: 2 
2007 ranking: 1 
 

Brighton & Hove

0

5

10

15

20
Air quality

Water quality

Waste collected /head

Ecological footprint

Green space

Education

UnemploymentTransport

Health

Climate change

Green business

Biodiversity

Recycling

 
This spider chart shows positions for each indicator where 20 is the highest and one 
the lowest score.  Points near the centre of the circle are lower positions indicating 
where more work needs to be done and ranks near the outside are higher than other 
cities.  
 
 
Indicators set 
 
Environmental Basket 
 
Overall environmental ranking - 12  (2007 – 15) 

 

Year Air quality Water 
quality 

Household 
waste 
collected 
per head 

Ecological 
footprint 

Total basket 
score 

2008 9 9 17 1 36 

2007 8 9.5 17 1 35.5 

(where 20 = highest, 1 = lowest) 
 
This basket’s indicators provide an indication of the city’s environmental 
performance: 

• Air quality – A new indicator for the 2008 Index is the annual mean of 
Nitrogen Oxides as NO2, therefore there is no comparison with 2007 levels 
which used PM10, this change was at the request of several local authorities.   

• River water quality – the percentage of rivers where biological and chemical 
qualities were deemed to be good or fair (2006 estimates).   

• Household waste collected per head (2006/7) – a partial proxy for the 
resource use per capita.   

51



• Ecological footprint – the impact of services, housing, transport and 
consumables on the environment (2003 estimates). 

 
Overall comments on the environmental basket – Brighton and Hove have not 
had any significant change in individual environmental indicators this year, although 
overall it has moved up slightly up the rankings, relative to other cities.  Brighton and 
Hove still has the largest ecological footprint per capita of all the cities. 
 
Quality of Life Basket 
 
Overall quality of life ranking – 1 (2007 – 1) 
 

Year Employ-
ment 

Transport Education Life 
expect-
ancy 

Green 
space 

Total 
basket 
score 

2008  13 20 19 15.5 19 86.5 

2007  15 20 19 20 19 93 

(where 20 = highest, 1 = lowest) 

 

These indicators aim to provide data on what the city is like to live in and how it is 
performing on social sustainability. 

• Employment – the number of benefit claimants as a percentage of the 
working age population (2008).  

• Education – percentage of the working age population with NVQ2 or 
equivalent (2007).  

• Transport – resident satisfaction with local bus service (2007).   

• Life expectancy from birth – a measure of health and longevity (2004-6), 
this indicator has changed from 2007 where we used healthy life expectancy 
from 65, as this data is updated annually.  

• Resident satisfaction with green space – percentage of residents who 
think that their local parks and open spaces have improved or stayed the 
same during the last three years (England 2003/4, Wales 2006).   

 
Overall comments on the quality of life basket –Brighton and Hove has continued 
to perform well on transport and education, keeping the city in first place in this 
basket for the second year running. 
 
 
Future Proofing Basket 

 

Overall future proofing ranking - 1   (2007 – 1) 
 

Year Climate change 
strategy 

Biodiversity Green 
business 

Recycling  Total 
basket 
score 

2008  19 11 16 19 65 

2007 10 11 12 24  57 

(where 20 = highest, 1 = lowest, except for climate change / recycling in 2007 which 
used different scoring systems) 

 

The data in this basket reflect the preparedness of the city for the future and its 
readiness to respond to the challenge of sustainability. 

• Local authority commitments on climate change – councils were scored 
on three areas; the existence of climate change strategy, ring-fenced 

52



resources for climate change mitigation or adaptation, and targets on CO2 

emissions reduction that exceed the Government’s target on 50% by 2050.  

• Biodiversity – percentage of land deemed to favour biodiversity as an 
indicator of the robustness of the system (2006/7).   

• Green businesses per capita – the number of green businesses listed on 
yell.com under the following categories; Environmental Consultants, Water 
Conservation and Management, Energy Saving Consultants, Conservation 
Groups and Pollution Control (July 2008).   

• Recycling – percent of household waste recycled or composted (2006/7).   
 
Overall comments on the future proofing basket – Brighton and Hove retains its 
top position due to the council’s climate change strategy and an improvement on the 
ranking on green business. 
 
 
¹  As Brighton has no rivers the city is not graded on this indicator and the other 
indicators in the environmental basket are weighed up instead (introduced in 2008 
following feedback). 
 

53



54


	Agenda
	17 Minutes of the previous meeting
	25 Procurement Code of Practice - Sustainability
	Item 24 Appendix 1

	26 Urban Biosphere City Status
	Item 25 Appendix 1

	27 Sustainable Cities Index
	Item 26 Appendix 1


